SENIOR GOLFERS ASSOCIATION OF ATLANTA

BYLAWS AND CONSTITUTION

AS AMENDED FEBRUARY 15, 2024 (REVISION 29) EFFECTIVE 2/15/2024

MEMBERSHIP	1	OFFICERS, DIRECTORS	7
RULES	2	COMMITTEES	10
HANDICAPS	3	CONSTITUTION	12
CAPTAIN	4		
TYPE OF PLAY	5		

ARTICLE 1 MEMBERSHIP:

A. ELIGIBILITY: As defined by the Constitution.

B. NEW MEMBERS:

- 1. The Secretary provides application forms for new applicants for membership. Every application must be endorsed by two members in good standing and shall include a \$25.00 non-refundable application fee which shall be applied toward the \$25 membership initiation fee upon member acceptance. Names of applicants are placed on a list in the order they are received by the Secretary, except that an eligible applicant who is the son or stepson of a current member will advance to the top of the application list. (R10)
- 2. Every new member applicant must be 55 years or older during the month of the year he is admitted, or the application and fee will be returned by the Secretary. All applicants must be approved by the Membership Committee. (**R10**)
- 3. Applicants will be advised by letter or email of their selection for membership. (R14)
- 4. On accepting membership and paying initiation fees and dues, each new member shall be furnished a copy of the Constitution and Bylaws.

C. CATEGORIES OF MEMBERSHIP

- 1. REGULAR: All members that have been accepted as members, paid the annual dues, and are not emeritus.
- 2. EMERITUS: Those members who become age 75 or older during the year and who have been members in good standing for at least five years. (R22)
- 3. Total membership shall be limited to **355**. Any exception changing this number requires approval by the Board of Directors. (R11)

D. DUES: Each member is required to pay annual membership dues of \$25.00. New members applying for membership after October 1st in any year shall be granted membership and the dues collected shall include membership dues for the following year. A dues notice will be posted in the Newsletters **at least 60 days prior** to January 1. All dues and fees must be paid by January 1 or the member will be dropped from the membership rolls. Any member suspended for non-payment of dues may be reinstated by March 31st of the next year with a majority vote of the Board of Directors provided all monies (including a penalty of \$20) due SGAA are paid in full. (R13)

ARTICLE II TOURNAMENTS:

A: REGISTRATION TABLES

- 1. TEE TIMES: Each Tournament Chairman establishes the tee time as published in the schedule for each tournament. SHOTGUN STARTS: Players must report to the tournament table no later than 30 minutes prior to tee time. Those reporting later, at the discretion of the table captain, may be declared ineligible to play. (R07)
- 2. ORDER OF PLAY: The Tournament Committee (the table) has the authority and responsibility to place individual players in foursomes for the day's play and shall designate the order in which they shall tee off. (R10)
- 3. SCORE CARDS: Before submitting score cards to the table, the players shall print their names, **date** and member numbers as listed on the handicap sheet, enter their classification and their points for dog fight or handicap for stroke play tournaments. At the completion of the round the player **shall check and verify his score card before the scorer has signed it, then refer it to the captain for his approval. IMMEDIATELY** after completion, the card will be turned into the table. When the scores are posted, and the computer turned off, the table is officially closed. Players not turning in their cards before the table closes that day will be disqualified. (R10)

5. INCOMPLETE ROUNDS

- (a) If a weather-related event interrupts play, it will be the table captain's decision whether to call a washout. If he does so, players will receive a zero (0) score for the round, CREDIT FOR THE ROUND PLAYED and table fees will be refunded at end of year; (R10)
- (b) If A PLAYER STARTS A PLAYING ROUND AND WITHDRAWS FOR ANY REASON OTHER THAN A DECLARED WASHOUT, HE WILL RECEIVE A ZERO (0) SCORE FOR THE ROUND, RECEIVE CREDIT FOR A ROUND PLAYED, BUT WILL NOT RECEIVE CREDIT FOR ANY EARNINGS FOR THE ROUND. (R10)

- (c) IF A PLAYER WHO IS A MEMBER OF A TWO OR FOUR MAN TEAM VOLUNTARILY WITHDRAWS FROM A ROUND, THE TEAM WILL RECEIVE A BLIND DRAW FROM THE SAME HANDICAP CATEGORY TO REPLACE THE PLAYER THAT WITHDREW. (R10)
- (d) IF A PLAYER WITHDRAWS DURING THE ANNUAL TOURNAMENT, THAT ROUND WILL BE COUNTED AS ONE OF THE NINE ROUNDS HE IS ELIGIBLE TO PLAY, AND THE TABLE FEE WILL NOT BE REFUNDED. (R10)

B. HANDICAPS:

- 1. A player's handicap will be determined by subtracting 72 (irrespective of the course played) from each 18-hole score based on a minimum of three rounds and a maximum of the last ten rounds played. No score greater than double bogey will be credited toward handicap. Dogfight points are computed by subtracting the handicap from 36.
- 2. Maximum handicap allowed is 36.
- 3. All new members are frozen in their membership application handicap until the end of the month that they have completed their three (3) rounds. For prize award purposes, their score is limited to plus or minus three (3) strokes from their membership application handicap. (R17)
- 4. A, B, C, D handicap divisions are computed by dividing the total membership into four approximately equal groups with the lowest handicaps for the A group and the highest for the D. group.
- 5. Member handicaps will be updated during the weekend prior to the first full week of each month during the SGAA season. (R08)
- 6. Handicaps of regular **and emeritus members** shall be grouped on one handicap sheet for use by members and table committees. (R10)
- C. CAPTAIN: There shall be a captain **for each pairing**. The captain shall receive the official score cards and distribute them so that no competitor keeps his own score. The captain shall direct the order of play, decide whether to request permission to pass a slower group, decide whether to invite a faster group to go through, see that the rules are complied with by his group and report rules violations observed in his group. Before the official score cards are turned in, he shall see that each member's name is printed legibly, that the score cards are legible, have been added correctly, that the proper handicap has been applied and the net score or dogfight points are clearly indicated, that each scorer has **signed and dated his card**, and the cards are submitted to the table ASAP after completion of the round. (R10).

D. TYPE OF PLAY: The Tournament Chairmen, with the approval of the Board of Directors, establishes the schedule for the year and designates the courses and kinds of tournaments which shall be played. An advanced schedule will be published to the membership. Any necessary changes or exceptions will be published in advance by the Secretary. A minimum of 15 players are required for an official SGAA tournament. (R28). The yearly schedule of the SGAA begins the third full week of January through the second full week of December. No tournaments will be scheduled the third full week of December through the second full week of January. (R20) All tournaments are dogfight tournaments unless board approval for a change is sanctioned.

1. ANNUAL TOURNAMENT

- a. This is a Dog Fight Tournament to be scheduled for three consecutive weeks in September and contains nine (9) play dates. Cancellations for inclement weather or other unintended disruptions will diminish the number of play dates. SGAA rules for calculating Dog Fight Points and averages remain in effect.
- b. This will be a Flighted Tournament (A, B, C, D flights) with flights established at the end of the previous month in the usual manner. To participate, one must have an established handicap for the current year, pay a ten-dollar (\$10) entry fee on the participants first play date and the participant may play as many rounds as desired, but only the participants best four rounds will be used to determine final score. A member and/or guest may play without participating in the tournament with no table fee charged.
- c. The Tournament Committee will determine winners in and of each flight by accumulated points acquired during the participants best four (4) rounds. In the event of a first-place tie within a flight, the score card of each players first play date will be used to break the tie by comparing their scores and continuing comparing their scores of each successive round until the tie is broken. Money winners of each flight will be determined by the Tournament Committee. (Revision 25)
- d. A Club Champion will be determined by the lowest gross score of the participants accumulated best four (4) rounds. (Tie rule applies paragraph c) (Revision 25)
- e. The Club Champion will be awarded a trophy, as will each flight winner, signifying their accomplishments.

2. DOG-FIGHT TOURNAMENTS

a. In these tournaments, all play is on an individual basis with the objective of earning the most dogfight points. Members will form their own foursomes (when possible) and submit two score cards to the table with name, ID

number, flight, dogfight points and Tournament fee. Dogfight points, ID number and flight are listed on the current handicap sheet. (**R20**)

b. New members with less than three rounds will be limited to plus or minus three points.

c. Dogfight points will be scored as follows: (R03)
Bogey......1point Eagle or Hole in one4 points
Par2 points Double Eagle........5 points
Birdie.......3 points

- d. When a player has reached strokes equal to bogey, he shall immediately cease play on that hole and notify the scorer to enter a score of two over par for him. (R10)
- f. Prize award points will be one for birdies, eight for eagles and twelve for double eagles and holes in one. Award points for eagles, double eagles and holes in one will be paid for from the general fund by the treasurer and not from the day's collected fees. Remaining award points, less close-ups and designated hole and dollars deducted for the treasury will be awarded for most dogfight points by flight. Each flight winner and ties will receive first place award points with the remainder of the award points to second, third, etc., place finishers distributed based on the amount of award points available for distribution within each flight. The tournament Committee shall assign one par 3 hole as the designated hole with players of all classifications competing for four award points to the player being on the green and closest to the hole with his drive. Three other par-3 holes shall have a set of A, B, C and D flags and one award point will be made for closest to the hole for each flight. (R10)
- g. The guideline of Senior Golf Course length should be on the order of **5000 to 5500** yards. Tee positions **will be in accordance** with the above criteria. The Tournament Committee or the Table Captain must coordinate all three days on a given course to have the same length with the same tee placement. (R12)

3. OUT OF TOWN AND MEMBER-GUEST TOURNAMENTS:

(a) Out of Town Tournaments: The Out of Town Tournament Chairman, as a member of the Tournament Committee shall schedule two or more three-day tournaments with the approval of the Board of Directors. The fees, including prize money will include all costs associated with the tournament including a 2% reserve. All funds collected for these tournaments will be deposited in the SGAA bank account within 10 days of receipt. All benefits such as free rooms, discounts or gratuities become a part of the package and will be used

- to reduce the cost for each member. Any funds remaining after the tournament will be returned to the general treasury. (R17)
- (b) MEMBER-GUESTS TOURNAMENTS: The President shall be responsible with the approval of the Board of Directors, for arranging a three or four-day Member-Guest tournament during September or October. Members may invite non-member guests for this event. Guest handicaps are required with a maximum value of 30 and are reduced by two strokes from USGA indexes. The fee arrangement is the same as for the out of town tournaments as outlined above.
- 4. FEES: The fee-for-in town tournament is \$5.00. The fee for the annual tournament shall be \$10.00. The fee for the out of town tournament shall be \$15.00 and will be paid in advance with the registration fee. No members are exempt from the annual or out of town tournament fees. (R08) If a player voluntarily withdraws from a round prior to completion, he will be credited with the round, given a score of zero and will not be refunded the table fee. (R10)
- 5. PRIZES: Prizes shall be awarded as points for all in town tournaments and at the discretion of the tournament chairman for all out of town events. In town tournaments, shall distribute the fees collected for that day's tournament as prize awards, less the amount established by the Board for the treasury. Awards for eagle, holes in one and double eagles shall be paid from treasury funds. (R11)

ARTICLE III OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

- A. Newly elected officers and directors will take office on January 1 of the year following their election. The incumbent Secretary and incumbent Treasurer will arrange a meeting with the newly elected Secretary and Treasurer for the orderly transfer of the duties and details of their offices.
- B. The Constitution establishes the method of election and specifies the general duties of each office. In addition to those listed in the Constitution, the specific duties of the following officers are:

C. PRESIDENT:

- It will be the duty of the President to see that this organization is run in accordance with the SGAA Constitution and Bylaws. Robert's Rules of order shall govern at all official meetings.
- 2. He will utilize the Executive Committee consisting of the Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer to establish objectives for the year and to conduct all business not requiring approval by the Board of Directors. The President, with the concurrence of

- the Executive Committee may approve expenditures up to \$400.00 per quarter without SGAA Board approval.
- 3. He will initiate action for the Member Guest Tournament to be held in late September or October and brief the Board on related plans.
- 4. He will schedule and make all arrangements with the banquet facilities for the Tee-Off Banquet, and the Annual Meeting. He may also schedule a President's Banquet and a Christmas Banquet at his discretion. (R03)

D VICE PRESIDENT:

- 1. Provides general supervision to the following committees:
 - (a) Tournament Committees
 - (b) Prize Committee
- 2. Appoint a Committee Chairman and as many additional members to the Tournament Committees as are deemed appropriate. In town and out of town tournament chairman selections shall be approved by the President.R08)
- 3. Maintain coordination with the President and be prepared to take his place and/or assume the Presidency if necessary.

E. SECRETARY:

- 1. Provides membership forms, processes application and advises applicants of their acceptance in writing.
- 2. The Secretary will assign members to publish and distribute a monthly newsletter, publish dues notices and notify those members who are dropped from the rolls for non-payment of dues or for any other reason.
- 3. Keeps minutes of all Association and Board of Director meetings. Furnishes copies of all such minutes to Board members prior to, or no later than the next board meeting. Notifies the membership, in the next newsletter, of any Board action requiring immediate observance by all SGAA members; e.g., changes in the rules of play, schedule changes, or requirements for maintaining membership, etc.(R08)
- 4. Provide such other services or counsel to members as may be in keeping with the duties of his office.

5. Obtain a plaque, medal or trophy to acknowledge the services of the retiring President, suitably engraved indicating his year or years in office.

F. TREASURER:

- 1. Develops, maintains and keeps up to date an accounting system in compliance with all state and federal regulations;
- 2. Prepares or have prepared all tax returns, state or federal, prior to the due date. The Treasurer shall be responsible for filing all such matters prior to their due dates.
- 3. Shall, when requested by the President or the Board of Directors, prepare and develop projections and forecasts of income and expenses.
- 4. Prepare a year to date operating statement (financial statement) on a quarterly basis or prior to meeting with the Board of Directors.
- 5. With the approval of the Board of directors, make any necessary changes in banking facilities. The outgoing and incoming Treasurer shall make all arrangements with the bank for the orderly transfer of signature cards and verification of bank balances.
- 6. Working in close cooperation with the President and the Board of Directors, the Treasurer shall maintain a positive cash flow in the current account and advise the Board if at any time the total balance of funds-exclusive of liabilities-is projected to go below an amount equal to the current year's dues.
- 7. Provide such other services or counsel to members as may be in keeping with the duties of his office.
- 8. A donation (\$100) shall be made on the demise of any active SGAA member. The Chaplin shall be reimbursed for mileage at the current government rate with the approval of the Executive Committee. (R14)

G. DIRECTORS:

- 1. Attend Board of Directors meetings when called by the President or by a quorum of Directors.
- 2. Serve on special or regular committees when requested by the President.
- 3. Vote on the approval/disapproval of all association expenses.
- 4. Vote on approval/disapproval of the in-town and out of town tournament schedules.
- 5. Will become knowledgeable of Association Bylaws and Constitution and be prepared to vote on proposed revisions.

- 6. Encourage compliance by all members to Association Bylaws and golf rules.
- H. INCOMING PRESIDENT: Present the award obtained by the Secretary to the retiring President.

ARTICLE IV COMMITTEES:

- A. TOURNAMENT COMMITTEES: There shall be four tournament committees: one for the current year, one for out of town, two for the year to come. The current tournament committees will be responsible for the administration and conduct of the current year tournaments. The committees for the year to come will be responsible for arranging the program for the ensuing year. Each committee will have a chairman. The chairman for the committee for the current year may but need not be the same individual who arranged the tournament schedule as chairman of the "year to come" committee. (R08).
 - 1. Current years committee members will be present at least 60 minutes prior to tee time to collect fees, assign order of play and designate a Captain for each group. (R29)
 - 2. Current year committee members will record scores and results by players to determine winners and supply the Secretary, the Awards/Rounds Chairman and the Handicap Chairman with files necessary for them to accomplish their tasks. (R14)
- B. MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE: This committee is composed of the President, Vice President and Secretary. The President may appoint additional members. This committee has the responsibility to decide upon acceptance or rejection of applications and cancellation of present memberships which do not comply with the Constitution and Bylaws.

C. NOMINATING COMMITTEE:

- 1. This committee shall be appointed by the President and shall consist of the immediate Past President, the Secretary, a Director and one member at large. The President at his option may appoint additional members.
- 2. The committee will review, select and submit to the Board of Directors for their approval, the names of at least one qualified member for each office to become vacant. These will include the office of President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer for two years (alternate years), three seats on the board for a three-year term.
- 3. The Board of Directors must approve the ballot and may add names to the ballot. The Board may also request removal of name(s) from the Ballot. (R03)

- 4 The names of the appointed members of the nominating committee shall be made known to the membership at least two months prior to the Annual Meeting in order that members may submit, for committee consideration, their recommendations of candidates for office. All names for nominees must be submitted by September 15. Any member desiring to run for office after that date must participate as a write-in candidate. (R15)
- 5. It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to place before the membership the approved list of nominees in writing at least one month prior to the Annual Meeting.
- D. ELECTION COMMITTEE: This committee shall be appointed by the President and shall include at least two members, one of whom must be a member of the Board of Directors. No member who is on the ballot may serve on this committee or participate in the tally of votes. This committee will be responsible to:
 - 1. Assure that each member who participates in an election of officers and directors at the Annual Meeting whether in person or by absentee ballot, casts one, and only one ballot; (R10)
 - 2. At the Annual Meeting, tally the votes cast for officers and directors and provide the results to the presiding officer before the end of the meeting;
 - 3. Secure the ballots in a sealed envelope and present the envelope to the Secretary for safe keeping.
 - 4. In case of a tie in the vote for any office, a run-off ballot will be cast by the members present at the year-end banquet. This shall be a written ballot counted by the Election Committee and results announced immediately on a completed count of the ballots. (R26)
- E. RULES COMMITTEE: The President shall appoint three members as a Rules Committee, identifying one as a Chairman. This committee will be responsible to:
 - 1. Decide and settle all controversial questions and situations regarding rules of golf as set forth by USGA and amended by these Bylaws;
 - 2. Grant hearings requested by members who have been accused of violations;
 - 3. Recommend to the Executive Board any actions that penalize, disqualify and/or suspend members guilty of rules violations. First violation requires penalty, disqualification or suspension by the Executive Committee. Second violation of a serious nature by the same member requires expulsion by the Board of Directors. (R13)

F. PROPERTY COMMITTEE:

- 1. Appointed by the President, the Property Committee Chairman shall establish and maintain an inventory of SGAA property such as computers, software, printers, copiers, briefcases, table boxes, nearest the pin markers, hats, towels, and any property of the Association with more than a token value;
- 2. Maintain a listing of all property and the responsible party;
- 3. Provide for keeping/storing of property not in use;
- 4. Report on status of property at first and last Director's meeting each year. Provide a report to the President whenever there is any missing SGAA property.

SENIOR GOLFERS ASSSOCIATION OF ATLANTA CONSTITUTION

AS AMENDED January 1, 2014

NAME: The name of the Association shall be:

Senior Golfers Association of Atlanta, Georgia

PURPOSE: The purpose of this Association shall be to promote the game of golf

> among members of the Association; to hold an annual championship golf tournament; to hold such other golf tournaments, competitions, exhibitions and entertainments as may be provided for by the Board of Directors; to promote knowledge, understanding and practice of

the rules, courtesies, ethics and sportsmanship of golf.

ELIGIBILITY FOR

MEMBERSHIP:

All men of the age of 55 years or over, who reside in the state of Georgia and who play golf on any golf course (public or private),

are eligible for membership in the Association.

OFFICERS: At the annual meeting of the membership of this Association each

> year, the members shall elect from the members of this Association: a President and Vice President, a Secretary and a Treasurer and **Directors.** The President and Vice President shall be elected for one (1) year terms and the Secretary and Treasurer for two (2) year

terms. The Secretary and Treasurer shall be elected in alternate years. A majority vote of valid votes cast, including absentee ballots, will determine all elections of officers and directors.

The President shall be the Executive Officer of the Board of Directors; may at any time appoint any members of this Association to serve on committees of the President and responsible to the President; may at any time cancel any such committee appointment; shall be ex-officio member of each committee; and shall preside at meetings of this Association and at meetings of the Board of Directors

The Vice President shall assist the President when directed by the President and shall perform the duties of the President in the absence of the President.

The Secretary shall assist the President, when directed by the President, and shall have custody of the records, correspondence and property pertaining to the office of Secretary

The Treasurer shall assist the President, when directed by the President, and shall have custody of the funds, correspondence, financial records and property pertaining to the office of Treasurer. Bank checks may be signed by the President, Treasurer, Secretary and/or an officer or member of the Board of Directors as selected by the President and the Board of Directors,

DIRECTORS:

There shall be nine Directors elected from the members of the Association. At the yearend meeting of the membership of the Association the members shall elect three Directors. Said Directors will serve a term of three years on the Board. The other six positions are filled by Directors that were elected to three year terms at the past two year-end meetings. Each Director shall hold office from January 1 following the year end meeting. At the end of their three-year term, exiting Directors must wait one year before running for the Board again. Nine Directors plus the President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer and Immediate Past President shall constitute the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall have control of all tournaments and other activities and functions of the Association.

EXPENSES:

On the order of the Board of Directors, the Directors, Officers and Committee Chairman may be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred in performing their duties. They shall receive no salary or other compensation for performing their duties. (R 12)

MEETINGS:

The annual meeting of this Association shall be held in the last quarter (October, November or December) of each year. Special meetings of the members of this Association may be called at other times by the Board of Directors. Meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President or by any six (6) Directors. Six (6) Directors shall constitute a quorum at a meeting of the Board of Directors. An affirmative vote by a majority of the Directors who are actually present (a quorum being present) at any directors meeting shall control.

BYLAWS:

At any meeting of the Board of Directors, the Board may adopt Bylaws for the regulation of dues, prizes, trophies, tournaments, competitions, entertainment, meetings, actions, affairs and other functions of this Association (not in conflict with this Constitution); and at any meeting of the Board of Directors, may amend or repeal such Bylaws.

VACANCIES:

If a vacancy occurs in the office of President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, or Director, the Board of Directors shall at its next meeting fill such vacancy.

AMENDMENT OF CONSTITUTION:

At any meeting of the membership of this Association, this Constitution may be amended by a majority vote of all members who are present and voting. Seventy-five (75) members shall constitute a quorum.